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The purpose of this amendment is to:

1)
Provide answers to questions submitted by potential offerors.  The questions submitted along with their answers are provided in the following pages. 

2)
Update the list of interested parties.  The list of interested parties is included as an attachment to this amendment.   

3)
 Revise clause B.7 paragraph C

FROM:  “As applicable, include separate cost estimates for materials and other miscellaneous non-labor costs that are required for performance of the delivery order.  All non-labor costs that are proposed must be allowable and allocable in accordance with the FAR, NASA FAR Supplement, and any other applicable NASA procurement policy documents.   The contractor shall include back-up information with their estimate that provides rationale for their proposed cost estimates for materials and other non-labor costs.  

No fee shall be applied to the cost of materials.”

TO:  “As applicable, include separate cost estimates for materials, which are non-fee bearing, and other miscellaneous non-labor costs that are required for performance of the delivery order.  All non-labor costs that are proposed must be allowable and allocable in accordance with the FAR, NASA FAR Supplement, and any other applicable NASA procurement policy documents.   The contractor shall include back-up information with their estimate that provides rationale for their proposed cost estimates for materials and other non-labor costs.  

No fee shall be applied to the cost of materials.”

A replacement page is attached with changes vertically barmarked.
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Questions and Answers

Question 42:
Section B.7 Fully Burdened Rates without Fee.  What is the intention of this rate table: Rates for NASA planning purposes only, where at the time of an IDIQ-CPFF delivery order, the contractor's then-current forward pricing rates will be used to establish the estimated target cost?  Rates to be utilized, regardless of the status of the contractors FPRP or FPRA, for the five year period for purposes of establishing the estimates target cost?  In either case, will the actual cost incurred be invoiced and paid utilizing the actual rates applicable to the period of performance, independent of the rates included on the rate table?

Answer 42:
The intention of the table containing fully burdened rates without fee in Section B at B.7 entitled “IDIQ Delivery Order Estimating – CPFF” is to capture competitively proposed rates to establish the estimated cost of future delivery orders.  Rates proposed may be composite rates that blend the prime offeror’s own rates with those of its proposed subcontractor(s).  For this reason, the proposed rates may not correlate directly to the prime offeror’s forward pricing rate proposal (FPRP) or agreement (FPRA) if one exists.  The estimated cost of future delivery orders will be established using the offeror’s proposed rates in Section B of the contract notwithstanding the status of any FPRP submitted by the prime contractor or any FPRA that might exist.  However, to the extent work is ordered using these cost-reimbursable rates, the offeror will receive payment for all allowable, allocable, and reasonable costs incurred for performance of authorized work.

 Question 43:
Section B.7 Travel. "No fee shall be applied to the costs of the trip". This requirement is not consistent with the FAR guidelines for CPFF and FFP contracting. It would only apply to Time-and-Material contracts.

Answer 43:
The requirement that “no fee shall be applied to the costs of trips” is consistent with the Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) with regard to cost-plus-fixed-fee contracting.  The FAR does not require travel costs to be used as a basis to earn additional fee.  Under the CRAVE contracts, travel constitutes little more than an incidental expenditure resulting from the core technical work.  The fixed fee was established to motivate the core technical work rather than reward incidental travel expenditures.  B.7 which contains the questioned restriction on applying fee to travel costs does not apply to firm fixed price (FFP) orders; consequently, it is not reasonable that this restriction is inconsistent with the FAR regarding FFP contracting. 

Question 44:
Section B.7 Material. "No fee shall be applied to the cost of materials". This requirement also is not consistent with the FAR guidelines for CPFF and FFP contracting. It would only apply to Time-and-Material contracts. Is it NASA's intent for this fee prohibition to apply to material cost only, or to all non-labor cost elements of the prime contractor, including the cost of major subcontractors?

Answer 44:
The requirement that “no fee shall be applied to the cost of materials” is consistent with the Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR).  The FAR does not require material costs to be used as a basis to earn additional fee.  Under the CRAVE contracts, it is expected that material and other non-labor costs constitute incidental expenditures resulting from to the core technical work.  The fixed fee was established to motivate the core technical work rather than reward incidental material or non-labor expenditures.  The exclusion of fee applies only to travel (cost of trips) and material as so stated in clauses B.7 and B.8. 
With regard to subcontracts for other than material or non-labor items, refer to the answer to Amendment 4 question 10 that stated “Subcontracted labor costs can be fee-bearing and are not considered material or other non-labor costs which are not fee-bearing.  For this reason, offerors may include subcontracted labor when developing its proposed fee amount.”

Question 45:
Section B.8 Fully Burdened Rates without Fee. What is the intention of this rate table: Rates for NASA planning purposes only, where at the time of an IDIQ-FFP delivery order, the contractor's then-current forward pricing rates will be used to establish the firm fixed price?  Define and fix the rates to be utilized to determine the price of any IDIQ-FFP delivery order issued over the five year period, regardless of the status of the contractors FPRP or FPRA?  What is the basis of the exclusion of escalation for all non-exempt labor categories?  Again this appears to be inconsistent with FAR guidelines. Is it NASA's intent for this escalation exclusion to apply to contactor's direct functions only, including hourly labor, or would NASA have it apply to indirect labor effort that is part of the contractor's burden rates?
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Answer 45:
Section B.8 entitled “IDIQ Delivery Order Estimating – FFP” does not have a rate table that excludes fee as suggested in the question.  These fully burdened rates allow for the application of profit at a rate at or below the not-to-exceed profit proposed in paragraph C of B.8.  

Rates proposed may be composite rates that blend the prime offeror’s own rates with those of its proposed subcontractor(s).  For this reason, the proposed rates may not correlate directly to the prime offeror’s forward pricing rate proposal (FPRP) or agreement (FPRA) if one exists.  The fixed price of any future delivery orders will be established using the offeror’s proposed rates in Section B, B.8 of the contract. 

With regard to excluding escalation from firm fixed price rates for non-exempt labor categories, in accordance with FAR Part 22.1006 and the clause at 52.222-43 entitled "Fair Labor Standards Act and Services Contract Act - Price Adjustment (Multiple Year and Option Contracts)," no allowance or contingency for increased cost shall be proposed for direct labor wages subject to prevailing wage determinations or collective bargaining agreements (CBA).  After contract award, rate adjustments may be made in accordance with 52.222-43 for Department of Labor (DOL) subsequent determinations.  Therefore, do not escalate direct labor rates for anyone either covered by a DOL wage determination or CBA in your fully loaded labor rates as part of your fixed price IDIQ proposal.  However, the proposed non-exempt fully burdened rates may change from year to year due to potential differences in applied indirect rates (overhead, G&A etc.).  Proposed rates for any skills not covered by a DOL wage decision or CBA shall include escalation if appropriate since the clause at 52.222-43 does not authorize those rates to be adjusted to address changes in prevailing wages after contract award.

Question 46:
Section B.8 Back-up to Materials, Travel and Other Non-labor Firm Fixed Prices. What is NASA's position relative to commercial item pricing that complies with the requirements of FAR Part 12?  Would they recognize this situation where pricing support would not be required?

Answer 46:
NASA determined that the requirements of the contemplated Crew Robotics and Vehicle Equipment (CRAVE) contracts do not constitute commercial items or services.  Consequently, the guidance contained in Part 12 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation has very limited application to this contract.  Since each order is expected to be a non-commercial requirement, it is expected that in the absence of a competitively established price in the commercial marketplace, that the contractor will have to provide supporting rationale or otherwise adequately explain the amounts it proposes for materials, travel, and non-labor costs.

Question 47:
Section B.8 Profit.  There is no profit limitation in the FAR for FFP contracting.

Answer 47:
The FAR and NFS clearly do not prohibit reaching an agreement on ceiling rates, including ceiling rates for profit.  The profit percentage listed in section B.8 is intended to provide an agreed upon ceiling profit rate for FFP delivery orders issued under the contract.   

Question 48:
4.5 Financial Management - It is the contractor's belief that this requirement would apply to the IDIQ-CPFF effort only, and not to the IDIQ-FFP effort. Correct?

Answer 48:
533 reports shall be required from all CRAVE contractors.  The reports are to report at the cost element level for the CPFF on a monthly basis.  The FFP can be reported as a bottom line.  Termination liability should be proposed for each delivery order in accordance with each contractor’s accounting practices.  If the contractor has no on-going effort during a particular month, then a report shall be submitted to reflect no changes since last reporting period. 
Question 49:
Section F.5 (c) Paragraph (c) states that contractors shall submit delivery order proposals within 14 days after the CO's request for delivery order proposals.  Does this mean that contractors must provide a proposal in every case?  In other words, may the contractor provide a no-bid response if it chooses?
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Answer 49:
You are correct in that Clause F.5 states that contractors shall submit delivery order proposals within 14 days after the CO’s request for delivery order proposals.  However, this does not mean that contractors must provide a proposal in every case.  In addition the contractor may provide a no-bid response.  It is important to note that it is specified in Clause B.3 that the guaranteed minimum contract value is applicable only if the contractor proposes on at least 5 delivery orders throughout the life of the contract.

Question 50:
Section L. 3 IDIQ Rates Development Template.  Is it NASA's intent that this table represent a "blended" set of fully-burdened contract rates that is determined by an assumed percentage work split among the prime and its major subcontractor teammates? Is this table to be used for NASA planning purposes only, and for individual IDIQ (CPFF and FFP), the actual work split with the applicable individual company rates for this work split would be utilized? If not, and NASA intends to utilize the blended rates for determining the contract value of the individual IDIQ delivery orders, what recourse does the contractor have if the above-mentioned assumed work split among all the teammates is markedly different from that of the specific IDIQ activity, and the actual rate differentials among the teammates results in a contract value less than the cost of the effort being performed?  If the individual IDIQ delivery order value is above $550K, would NASA require a certificate of current cost or pricing? If so, how could the price be certified if the rates and the assumed work split do not align with the actual cost of the effort?

Answer 50:
It is NASA's intent that the IDIQ Rates Development Template represents a "blended" set of fully-burdened contract rates determined by the offeror’s estimated percentage work split among the prime and its major subcontractor teammates.

The IDIQ Rates Development Template is required from the prime only and is intended to show how the offeror arrived at its’ proposed fully burdened contract rates.  The intent of this template is to capture 

competitively proposed rates in order to estimate cost of future delivery orders.  Rates proposed may be composite rates that blend the prime offeror’s own rates with those of its proposed subcontractor(s).    

The offeror is responsible in determining the estimated work split among its team members.  However, with respect to the work ordered using these cost-reimbursable rates, the offeror will receive payment for all allowable, allocable, and reasonable costs incurred for performance of authorized work.  

A certificate of current cost or pricing is not required as each DO will be competed.  However, as stated before, the offeror is responsible in determining the estimated work split among its team members.  The work split among team members should not be markedly different from what was proposed during the competition.

Question 51:
Section L. 6 G&A Template.  If the contractor does as a business practice enter into an FPRA with it's cognizant DCMA office, but at any point in time, an FPRP is being utilized for pricing until such time a new FPRA is reached, is the contractor required to complete this form?  Please reconcile the statement that the "Government does not require or mandate indirect rate ceilings" with the rate table requirements contained in other parts of the contract and the statement that "the template includes an area for G&A ceilings"

Answer 51:
If the offeror has a current FPRA, the Government does not require a completed G&A template.  However, the offeror must provide the agreement.  If a new FPRA is being negotiated, indicate that this agreement is currently being negotiated and when it may be available.

The offeror is correct in that the Government does not require or mandate indirect rate ceilings as stated in the cost instructions.  However, the template includes an area for G&A ceilings should you choose to propose as such.

Question 52:
Page L-2-20 under task description (a.) Review the attached Sensor Circuit Requirements document. Where can the attachment be located?

Answer 52:
A Sensor Circuit Requirements Document will not be provided.  Also, there will be no Principal Investigator access for the proposal effort. 
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Question 53:
I have a question regarding the Cost Proposal Instructions.  On Page L-33 (B-CRAVE & L-32 B-CRAVE) the second paragraph it states “These instructions apply to the prime offeror and all subcontractors.”  Should this really state “…all major subcontractors.”?  Taken to an extreme, any supplier of pumps, blowers, valves etc. to an offeror would also have to do a standard labor category based cost proposal which would be a large burden.

Answer 53:
The instructions in question are applicable to any subcontractors required to submit the information to which the instructions apply, in other words any subcontractor who’s rates are included in the development of the proposed IDIQ rates.   
B. 
Travel  

All travel shall be as approved by the Government prior to travel and will be allocated to the contract based on actual airfare and per diem rates per the most current official CONUS Per Diem Rates, located at www.dtic.mil/perdiem/pdrform.html.  All requests for travel shall include the purpose and the rationale for the travel, such as why the purpose cannot be accomplished through a means other than travel (i.e., teleconferencing).  
Costs relating to approved travel shall be allocated to individual delivery orders under this contract.  Vouchers may be submitted upon completion of individual trips and shall be prepared and submitted in accordance with Clause G.4 entitled “Submission of Vouchers for Payment.” The invoices shall include copies of receipts for airfare, lodging, car rental, and other expenses as required by the company policy.  All costs for trips will be limited as follows:  

1.   Maximum allowable costs for lodging, meals and incidental expenses are limited to current Government-established per diem rates.  

2.   Maximum allowable cost for use of privately owned vehicles shall be restricted to the Federal Travel Regulations.  

3.   Allowable air travel expenses are limited to standard coach fare whenever it does not conflict with the ultimate purpose of the travel.  

4.   Allowable automobile rental cost is limited to compact cars.  

5.   Per diem paid on travel days are ¾ per diem. The time spent in travel is not considered.    

6.   No fee shall be applied to the costs of trips.  

C.

Materials and Other Non-labor Costs

As applicable, include separate cost estimates for materials, which are non-fee bearing and other miscellaneous non-labor costs that are required for performance of the delivery order.  All non-labor costs that are proposed must be allowable and allocable in accordance with the FAR, NASA FAR Supplement, and any other applicable NASA procurement policy documents.   The contractor shall include back-up information with their estimate that provides rationale for their proposed cost estimates for materials and other non-labor costs.  

No fee shall be applied to the cost of materials.

